ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 2, 2005
1:32 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Fred Dyson, Chair
Senator Gary W/l ken, Vice Chair
Senator Lyda G een

Senat or Kim El ton

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Donny O son
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 60
"An Act extending the termnation date of the Statew de Suicide
Prevention Council; and providing for an effective date."

MOVED SB 60 OUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE BI LL NO. 22
"An Act adding birthing centers to the list of health facilities
eligible for paynent of nedical assistance for needy persons.”
MOVED SB 22 QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 60
SHORT TI TLE: EXTEND SUI Cl DE PREVENTI ON COUNCI L
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) STEVENS B

01/ 14/ 05 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 14/ 05 (S) HES, FIN

02/ 02/ 05 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 22

SHORT TITLE: MEDI CAI D COVERAGE FOR Bl RTHI NG CENTERS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DAVIS, DYSON

01/ 11/ 05 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 30/ 04
01/ 11/ 05 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 11/ 05 (S) HES, FIN

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- February 2, 2005



01/19/05 (H HES AT 1:30 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532
01/ 19/ 05 (S) Heard & Held

01/ 19/ 05 (S) M NUTE( HES)

01/ 26/ 05 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

01/ 26/ 05 (S -- Meeting Canceled --

02/ 02/ 05 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REGQ STER

Pat Davi dson

Legi sl ative Audit Division

Al aska State Legislature

PO Box 113300

Juneau, Al aska 99811-3300
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports

Kat hryn Craft

Sui ci de Prevention Council
Departnent of Health & Soci al
PO Box 110601

Juneau, AK 99801-0601

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports

Murry Butl er ND

Cordova Comrunity Medi cal
Cordova, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports
Jennifer Heller RN
Il anka Health Center
Cordova, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports
Hol Iy Steiner

New Life Mdw fery
Wasil |l a, AK 99654
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports
Bar bara Norton

Ceneva Wods Birth Center
3730 Rhone Circle STE 102
Anchor age, AK 99508
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports
Jack Ni el son

Departnent of Health & Soci al
PO Box 110601

Juneau, AK 99801-0601

SENATE HES COW TTEE

SB 60

staff

Servi ces

SB 60

Cent er

SB 22

SB 22

SB 22

SB 22

Servi ces

February 2, 2005



POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Neutral on SB 22

Jerry Fuller

Departnent of Health & Social Services
PO Box 110601

Juneau, AK 99801-0601

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Neutral on SB 22

Sharon Evans

Mat-Su M dw fery

2650 Broadvi ew Ave.

Wasi |l | a, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 22

Dana Brown

Al aska Family Health & Birth

753 Gaffney Rd.

Fai r banks, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 22

Kaye Kanne

M dwi fe' s Associ ati on of Al aska Qut door Counci l
PO Box 22256

Juneau, AK 99802

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 22

Jack Jacobs, MD
Anchor age, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Opposes SB 22

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R FRED DYSON called the Senate Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 1:32:24 PM
Present were Senators Gary W/ ken, Lyda Geen, and Kim Elton.
Senator O son was excused.

SB 60- EXTEND SUI Cl DE PREVENTI ON COUNCI L

1:33:26 PM

SHANNON STRAUBE, staff to Senator Ben Stevens, introduced SB 60,
whi ch would extend the term nation date of the council from June
30'" 2005 to June 30 2006. Senator Ben Stevens submitted the bill
and the legislative audit recomrended t he extension.

1: 34: 53PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3- February 2, 2005



KATHY CRAFT, Suicide Prevention Council coordinator, Departnent
of Health and Social Services (DHSS), offered a brief update on
the council. She advised the goals this year are to broaden the
awar eness of suicide and the risk factors, to enhance prevention
services, to develop healthy communities, and to strengthen
existing and build new partnershi ps between public and private
entities that will advance suicide efforts in Al aska.

1:36: 13 PM

The Suicide Prevention Council has a contract with the Al aska
Injury Prevention Center for a study involving psychologica
autopsies. They work with the Departnment of Public Safety to
obtain information on individuals who commt suicides. After an
appropriate nourning time, they contact the famlies to see if
they would contribute to the study. They have asked for an
extension of the study, which ends June 30, 2005 so they can
gather nore information. The study collects information such as
suicide rates by age group, nethods of suicide, substance abuse
i nvol venent, ethnicity, and urban vs. rural.

1:37:51 PM

M5. CRAFT said they have plans to train conmmunities for when
sui cide becones an issue, what the community can do. They have
started a public awareness canpaign titled “Suicide Hurts”, and
have had posters printed. They have drafted television and radio
scripts but are lacking funds to conplete the effort. They are
working on continuing the clergy initiative, which brings the
prevention treatnment together with clergy. The annual report
will be submtted in two weeks.

1:39:19 PM

CHAI R DYSON asked who is able to speak regarding the graphs and
trends in the packet submtted to the commttee.

M5. CRAFT answered she is.

CHAI R DYSON asked when should the state expect to see reductions
in the suicide rate.

M5. CRAFT answered it depends on economcs and services
avail able. She said in 2004 the rate did increase.

CHAI R DYSON asked when the council was created.
M5. CRAFT advised it was 2002.

1: 41: 29 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- February 2, 2005



CHAIR DYSON asked Ms. Craft about next year’s goal in suicide
reducti on.

M5. CRAFT advised the council would like a 10 percent reduction
in 2005.

CHAI R DYSON asked which state departnments partner in the effort
to reduce statew de suicide rate.

M5. CRAFT replied the Departnent of Health and Social Services,
the Division of Behavioral Health and Public Health, the Trust
Aut hority, the Mental Health Board, the Advisory Board on
Al coholism and Drug Abuse, the Governor’s Counci | on
Disabilities and Special Education, the Al aska Conm ssion on
Agi ng, and the new Faith-based Community Initiative Forum

CHAI R DYSON asked about the Departnent of Education, the schoo
system and the police departnent.

M5. CRAFT agreed those entities would also serve to pronote
their efforts.

CHAI R DYSON asked for other questions.

1:43:18 PM

CHAI R DYSON conplinmented the efforts of the council and asked if
it was still disproportionately rural native nales commtting
sui ci de.

M5. CRAFT answered yes. It is also disproportionately people in
their 20s. She hopes that once the structured training and the
nedi a canpai gn begin they will see positive results.

1:45:19 PM
CHAI R DYSON asked the percentage of suicides involving m nd-
altering drugs.

M5. CRAFT replied 73 percent for those with a history of
substance abuse, but the total is 62 percent.

CHAI R DYSON asked whether the suicide rate would be reduced if
firearns were not avail abl e.

M5. CRAFT answered they plan to address firearm security in
their community training efforts.

1: 47: 50 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- February 2, 2005



SENATOR LYDA GREEN asked how the council is faring overall.

M5. CRAFT advised they are involved in witing proposals and
working with comrunity-based suicide prevention planning. They
are working wth the Dvision of Behavi or al Health to
incorporate a plan into their grant responses. The council and
DHSS are working on a formal systemregardi ng the budget.

1:49: 47 PM

CHAIR DYSON asked Pat Davidson to explain the nobney spent on
furniture and the noney transferred to the Termnal Leave and
| nsurance Cat astrophe Wrki ng Account.

PAT DAVIDSON, Division of Legislative Audit representative
advi sed Chair Dyson that DHSS used approximately $30,000 to buy
furniture for information technology services. There was no
direct benefit to the suicide prevention council. There is a
provision in statute that when you have joint costs, then
everyone pitches in. She added there is a format for using joint
funds that was not followed and she advised that would be
addressed in the statewi de financial audit.

1:51: 57 PM
CHAI R DYSON asked whether the council had any control of DHSS s
decision to use the council’s noney.

M5. DAVIDSON replied no. The budget act appropriation term is
Boards and Comm ssions. There is the ability to nobve nonies
Wi thin the appropriation but DHSS did not follow the guidelines.
A contributing factor is unclear financial information between
the departnent responsible for admnistering funds and the
council. The council was inpaired by a lack of financial
under st andi ng, which is why al nost $95,000 |apsed at the end of
t he year.

1:54: 07 PM

V5. DAVI DSON expl ai ned the transfers into the Term nal Leave and
| nsurance Catastrophe Reserve Fund are existing statutory
provisions for otherwise |lapsing funds to refill reserve
accounts. She added that the council did not know where they
were financially.

SENATOR KIM ELTON asked Ms. Davidson if there are nechani sns
available to allow for rei nbursenent back to the council.

V5. DAVIDSON replied that an appropriation is an opportunity to
spend nmoney. |f the council doesn't spend the noney they |ose

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- February 2, 2005



it. The Legislature could increase the current year budget and
the council could have the opportunity to access the funds that
were | ost.

1: 56: 39 PM
SENATOR ELTON asked if there is a nechanism to redress one unit
spendi ng the noney allocated to another unit.

MS. DAVIDSON answered that a possible recommendation is the
departnent could appeal the appropriation. She recomends in
future years, t he DHSS adm nistrative depart nment t ake
responsibility for financial conmunications to the council.

SENATOR GREEN asked V5. Davi dson i f al | ocati ons and
appropriations could be nore clearly defined in the future.

M5. DAVI DSON answered that by statute, agencies are allowed to
nove noney W thin an appropriation.

CHAI R DYSON asked the council to get back to the conmttee wth
a reasonabl e performance target for the future.

1:59: 38 PM

CHAIR DYSON said the suicide rates in the State of Al aska are 2-
3 tinmes the national average. The council needs to show that it
makes a difference.

2:01: 03 PM
SENATOR GREEN suggested to the council that they include their
m ssion and plan in their publication.

2:03:17 PM

SENATOR GREEN nmoved SB 60 from commttee wth individua
recommendations and attached fiscal note. There being no
obj ection, the notion carried.

2:03:49 PM

SB 22- MEDI CAl D COVERAGE FOR BI RTHI NG CENTERS

2:04:43 PM

RI CHARD BENAVI DES, staff to Senator Bettye Davis introduced SB
22 and said Senator Davis feels strongly that SB 22 will help
control Medicaid costs. He added the facility fees for birthing
centers would always be lower than the hospital fees mainly
because birthing center births were |low ri sk pregnanci es.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- February 2, 2005



CHAI R DYSON said the information he has seen indicates facility
charges for birthing centers and hospitals are conparative.

2:06: 22 PM

VR. BENAVI DES submitted new information regarding cost
conparisons. He cited fromthe packet that Geneva Wods Birthing
Center, (Geneva Wods) charges a $1,500 facility fee, and
Providence Hospital facility fee 1is $4,000 excluding the
doctor’s fee.

2:07:50 PM
CHAI R DYSON asked whether the hospital fee adds $1,000 for the
second ni ght.

MR. BENAVIDES confirnmed that and added there is no second night
at a birthing center because they are generally unconplicated
births.

2:09: 07 PM

CHAI R DYSON stated unconplicated births with prepared parents at
a birthing center are adequate health care. He said the argunent
is without the birthing center facility charge being Medicaid
rei mbursenent eligible, many poor people will have to choose the
nore expensive hospital opti on, which then is Medicaid
rei nbursable. He asked if any jurisdictions require birthing
centers have a formalized relationship with a hospital

MR.  BENAVI DES explained regarding conplications, the nother
woul d transfer to a hospital.

2:11:13 PM

CHAI R DYSON noted many doctors and facilities have a formalized
relationship with a hospital. He expects the comrmttee action
will be to refer SB 22 to the finance commttee, which will then
deal with the nore conplicated issues such as the risk of SB 22
accel erating the Medicaid costs.

2:12: 08 PM
CHAI R DYSON cal l ed Dr. Murray Butner to testify.

MURRAY BUTNER, MD, Cordova Conmunity Medical Center, testified
that he has tried to refer sone of his Denali Kid Care patients
to birthing centers but was informed that Denali Kid Care would
not cover the facility fee, thereby precluding the wonen from
choosing that option. He believes that SB 22 will save the state
substanti al anmounts of noney.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- February 2, 2005



CHAI R DYSON asked Dr. Butner if he had his child delivered in a
birthing center.

2:14:55 PM

DR. BUTNER answered yes. He stated his extensive know edge of
the birthing process allowed himto choose the option. There are
pros and cons of birthing center births and of hospital births
but he expressed his opinion there should be an option for
Medi cai d recipients.

CHAIR DYSON referred to a note he was handed that said state
Medi cai d pays hospitals a reduced fee.

DR. BUTNER said he believes that to be true. He suggested that
sonebody conpare the facility costs and all associated fees with
the birthing center fee to get a true contrast.

2:16:49 PM

JENNI FER HELLER, regi stered nurse, Ilanka Health Center
testified she called Providence Hospital and was quoted $3400
for the facility fee. The facility fee is $1500 at Geneva Wods.
Her support for SB 22 is based on providing choices for wonen.

2:18: 09 PM

HOLLY STEINER, New Life Mdw fery representative stated she is a
| abor delivery nurse and a certified mdw fe. She clarified that
the birth center fee is a one-tinme fee, which does not nultiply
the next day. It is rare to have soneone stay |onger than 24
hours. Her practice turns wonen away on a regular basis that
cannot afford the mdwife fee. These wonen want the birthing
center service but are not afforded that option. Her experience
is the same wonen are charged $10,000 by the hospital for their
births. Since Medicaid is paying for this, it is costing the
state unnecessarily.

2:20: 04 PM

Statistics show that mdw fery care has been proven around the
worl d. The goal is not to nmake noney but to provide good care to
wonen and decrease the infant nortality rate. Since 1997
statistics show a rise in mdwifery births in the Mat-Su area.
Since 2002 they have opened up one new birth center and three
new m dw fery businesses in the valley. In Juneau and Anchorage,
statistics show the same pattern. In the long run this would
definitely save the state noney.

2:22:18 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 9- February 2, 2005



CHAIR DYSON infornmed the room that SB 22 would pass out of
commttee today and those who want to testify may wait for the
hearing in the Senate Finance Standing Committee.

2.22:54 PM

BARBARA  NORTON, Geneva Wods Birth Center representative,
testified Geneva Wods has a witten transfer agreenment wth
Provi dence Hospital. It is a requirement for their national
accreditation. She stated that while the facility charges for
the hospital my be contracted at a lower rate, intervention
i ncreases costs w th unnecessary procedures such as epidurals
and induced l|abor. The national Cesarean section rate is 27
percent, while birthing center Cesarean rate is between 3-6
percent in Al aska. She believes mdwifery care decreases the
risk of Cesarean sections, thereby saving costs. The State of
Florida Legislature passed a bill several years ago with a goa
of having a mdwife attend 25 percent of births because they
recogni zed the significant cost savings. She wants to ensure
that |owincome wonen are not being denied the opportunity to
have | ow i ntervention births.

2:25:58 PM
SENATOR GREEN asked Ms. Norton to clarify her reference to
i nsurance conpani es.

MS5. NORTON said npst insurance conpani es pay 80 percent but sone
i nsurance conpanies pay 100 percent of the birthing center
facility fees because they want to encourage people to use that
opti on.

SENATOR GREEN cautioned the conmttee not to overlook the
possibility that the federal governnment would not reinburse the
state for birthing center fees.

2:27.36 PM

CHAIR DYSON said he considered the option of nmaking SB 22
conditional that Medicaid be available for birthing centers that
have an agreenent with a hospital or as part of the national
accreditation.

2:28:21 PM
CHAI R DYSON asked Jack N el son when his departnment would finish
the regulations for birthing centers.

JACK NI ELSON, Departnment of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

stated that once the law is passed nmeking birthing centers a
covered service, DHSS would put together regulations for the

SENATE HES COW TTEE -10- February 2, 2005



rei mbur senent net hodol ogy. He commented the departnent is unsure
of federal approval. It could be a tinme consum ng process and it
could be a general fund program

2:29: 37 PM
SENATOR GREEN agreed with Chair Dyson that it was a good idea to
make SB 22 contingent on federal approval for the waiver for
i ncl usi on.

CHAI R DYSON advi sed Jack Nielson and Jerry Fuller he understood
DHSS was comng forth with regulations for birthing centers and
that is wasn’'t contingent on SB 22.

JERRY FULLER, Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS)
referred to legislation passed |ast year, which noved birthing
centers from a registration process to a licensing process. He
is not sure where DHSS is in acconplishing that.

CHAI R DYSON asked himto find out where the process is.

2:30: 52 PM
MR. FULLER advised DHSS is neutral on SB 22 and he and M.
Ni el son were there to answer questions.

SHARON EVANS, mdwife at Mat-Su Mdw fery, testified in 2004,
218 Denali Kid Care births were done by five birth centers in
the Anchorage area. Her position is the state would save
approxi mately $2500 per patient if SB 22 becones |aw. Based on
these nunbers the state would have saved $545,000 just on the
218 births al one, excluding the suppl enental hospital costs.

2:33:.12 PM
She asked the conmttee to support SB 22 so that needy wonen
wi || have options and the State of Al aska woul d save noney.

2:34: 15 PM

KAYE KANNE, Mdw fe’'s Association of Alaska representative,
addressed the issue of the federal governnment not matching funds
and advised the association would continue to work wth the
federal governnment regarding recognition of birthing centers.
Meantime the state would still realize a savings. The hospital
facility fee does not include nmandatory fetal nonitoring, |Vs,
epidurals, and Cesarean section rates. The hospital in Juneau
charges a mninum of $10,000, not including the physician fee.
She advised that Shelby Larsen is the contact person at the
state regarding drafting of the birthing center regulations and
that the association is part of that project. DHSS is involved

SENATE HES COW TTEE -11- February 2, 2005



in a major regulation project and the birthing centers would be
part of that but it would take time to conplete.

2:37:36 PM
SENATOR ELTON confirned the major regul ation project at DHSS.

2:38:30 PM

JACK JACOB, MD, and newborn specialist advised the conmttee to
ask critical questions. He said the statistics that he has heard
from the birthing centers are inconplete regarding costs. He
asked the conmttee to take into account the conplications that
occur frombirthing center births.

2:40: 19 PM

DR. JACOBS said in his experience there is nothing unsafe about
birthing center births. What is unsafe is the infrastructure in
the United States. O her countries have <created sound
infrastructure regarding safe practices. H's inpression is that
the birthing centers do deliver high-risk nothers. He advised
the commttee to gather nore information regarding conplication
rates and death rates.

2:42: 04 PM
CHAIR DYSON asked Dr. Jacobs whether he is inferring that
birthing centers contribute to higher death rates.

DR. JACOBS answered if patients are screened correctly and if
they are low risk patients, then the death rate should be zero.

CHAIR DYSON asked Dr. Jacob if he knew of any cases where
conplications were exacerbated because the nother went to a
birthing center.

DR. JACOBS answered yes and said it 1is because appropriate
screening and infrastructure does not exist.

CHAIR DYSON asked Dr. Jacobs if he would recomend birthing
centers have a formal relationship with a hospital

DR. JACOB responded that the issue is conplex. There are a few
hi ghly urban countries in Europe that have a good nodel.

Chair Dyson asked Dr. Jacobs if he is inferring that birthing
centers should be close to a hospital.

2:44: 50 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE -12- February 2, 2005



DR. JACOBS replied if a birthing center is not close to a
hospital, there needs to be specific plan.

CHAI R DYSON announced a brief recess for discussion.

2:45: 31 PM
CHAIR DYSON called the comm ttee back on record.

2:46: 34 PM

SENATOR WLKEN noved SB 22 out of commttee wth individual
recomendati ons and attached fiscal note. He added his concern
regarding cost. He stated the Denali Kid Care program costs the
state far beyond what was expected. The Medicaid climte incurs
extraordi nary costs out of the general fund budget.

2:48: 41 PM

SENATOR ELTON offered the Senate Finance Standing Conmittee
woul d | ook at costs given the explosion in health care costs and
additional fees charged at facilities. He believes increasing
options introduces a conpetitive business. He stated his
estimation is that SB 22 woul d save the state noney.

2:50: 21 PM

CHAI R DYSON recognized no objections and SB 22 noved out of
conmittee.

There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
Chair Dyson adjourned the neeting at 2:50:35 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE -13- February 2, 2005



